
 
Neuadd Y Sir 

Y Rhadyr 
Brynbuga 

NP15 1GA 
 

Dydd Mawrth, 14 Mai 2024 

 
Annwyl Cynghorydd 

PENDERFYNIADIAU AELOD CABINET UNIGOL 

Hysbysir drwy hyn y caiff y penderfyniadau dilynol a wnaed gan aelod o’r cabinet eu 
gwneud Dydd Mercher, 22ain Mai, 2024,. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   CASGLU ARIAN A DDIOGELWYD O DAN BRIDIANT TIR AR FFERM UPPER HOUSE, TREFYNWY MEWN 
CYSYLLTIAD Â HYSBYSIAD GWAITH BRYS A GYFLWYNWYD YN ALLT Y BELLA 
 
CABINET MEMBER:  County Councillor Paul Griffiths 
 

AUTHOR: Amy Longford – Heritage and Development Management Area Manager 
 

 
CONTACT DETAILS:  

  
E-mail: amylongford@monmouthshire.gov.uk  
 

2.   GWELLA'R CYNNIG I OFALWYR MAETH SIR FYNWY 
 
CABINET MEMBER:  County Councillor Ian Chandler 
 

AUTHOR: 
Charlotte Drury 

 

CONTACT DETAILS  

E-mail:   charlottedrury@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

 
 
 
Yr eiddwch yn gywir, 
 
 
Paul Matthews 
Prif Weithredwr 

Public Document Pack

mailto:amylongford@monmouthshire.gov.uk


 

 

 
 

PORTFFOLIOS CABINET 
 

Cynghorydd Sir  Meysydd o Gyfrifoldeb  Ward 

Mary Ann 

Brocklesby 

 

Yr Arweinydd 

Swyddogion Arweiniol - Paul Matthews, Matthew 

Gatehouse  

 

Strategaeth a Chyfeiriad yr Awdurdod Cyfan  

Adolygu a gwerthuso perfformiad yr awdurdod cyfan 

Hyrwyddo lleoliaeth o fewn fframweithiau rhanbarthol a 

chenedlaethol  

Perthynas â Llywodraeth Cymru, Llywodraeth y DU a 

chymdeithasau llywodraeth leol  

Cysylltiadau Rhanbarthol â Rhanbarthau Dinesig a'r 

Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus   

Caffael Strategol   

Cynhyrchu a defnydd bwyd lleol, a chaffael gan 

gynnwys amaethgoedwigaeth a garddwriaeth leol   

Llanelly  

 

Paul Griffiths Aelod Cabinet dros Gynllunio a Datblygu 

Economaidd a’r Dirprwy Arweinydd  

Swyddog Arweiniol - Frances O'Brien  

 

Strategaeth Economaidd  

Cynllun datblygu lleol a chynllun datblygu strategol gan 

gynnwys safleoedd tai strategol   

Digartrefedd, darpariaeth dai fforddiadwy a thai sector 

preifat (cartrefi gwag, cynllun prydlesu, benthyciadau 

gwella cartrefi, grantiau cyfleusterau i'r anabl a 

thechnoleg addasol) 

Cefnogi Canol Trefi gan gynnwys parcio ceir a gorfodi  

Rheoli Datblygu a Rheoli Adeiladu  

Sgiliau a Chyflogaeth   

Cysylltedd band eang   

Meysydd parcio a gorfodaeth sifil  
safonau masnach, iechyd yr amgylchedd, iechyd y 

cyhoedd, trwyddedu  

Castell Cas-gwent a 

Larkfield 

Ben Callard Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau 

Prif Swyddogion – Peter Davies, Frances O'Brien, 

Matthew Phillips, Jane Rodgers   

 

Cyllid gan gynnwys CATC a’r cylch cyllideb blynyddol 

Buddion 

Technoleg a gwybodaeth ddigidol   

Adnoddau dynol, y gyflogres, iechyd a diogelwch 

Tir ac adeiladau   

Cynnal a chadw a rheoli eiddo  

Cynllunio brys 

Llanfoist & Govilon 



 

 

Martyn Groucutt Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg  

Swyddogion Arweiniol - Will McLean, Ian Saunders  

 

Addysg Blynyddoedd Cynnar   

Addysg statudol pob oed  

Anghenion dysgu ychwanegol/cynhwysiant  

Addysg ôl-16 ac addysg oedolion  

Safonau a gwelliant ysgolion  

Dysgu Cymunedol  

Rhaglen cymunedau cynaliadwy ar gyfer dysgu  

Gwasanaethau Ieuenctid  

Cludiant ysgol  

Lansdown 

Ian Chandler 

 

Aelod Cabinet dros Ofal Cymdeithasol, Diogelu a 

Gwasanaethau Iechyd Hygyrch  

Swyddog Arweiniol - Jane Rodgers  

 

Gwasanaethau Plant  

Maethu a mabwysiadu  

Gwasanaethau Troseddau Ieuenctid   

Gwasanaethau Oedolion   

Diogelu plant ac oedolion awdurdod cyfan  

Anableddau   

Iechyd meddwl a lles 

Perthynas â darparwyr iechyd a mynediad at 

ddarpariaeth iechyd   

Parc 

Catrin Maby Aelod Cabinet dros Newid yn yr Hinsawdd a'r 

Amgylchedd 

Swyddogion Arweiniol – Frances O'Brien, Ian Saunders 

 

Datgarboneiddio  

Cynllunio trafnidiaeth, trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus, priffyrdd a 

fflyd Cyngor Sir Fynwy 

Teithio llesol a hawliau tramwy  

Rheoli gwastraff, gofal stryd, sbwriel, mannau 

cyhoeddus a pharciau  

Palmentydd a lonydd cefn  

Lliniaru, rheoli ac adfer llifogydd  

Cefn gwlad, bioamrywiaeth ac iechyd afonydd   

Drybridge 

Angela Sandles 

 

Aelod Cabinet dros Gydraddoldeb ac Ymgysylltu  

Swyddogion Arweiniol – Frances O'Brien,, Matthew 

Gatehouse, Jane Rodgers  

 

Anghydraddoldeb cymunedol a thlodi (iechyd, incwm, 

maeth, anfantais, gwahaniaethu, ynysu ac argyfwng 

costau byw) 

Ymgysylltu â dinasyddion a hyrwyddo democratiaeth 

gan gynnwys gweithio gyda sefydliadau gwirfoddol  

Profiad y dinesydd - canolfannau cymunedol, canolfan 

gyswllt, a gwasanaeth cwsmeriaid a chofrestryddion  

Canolfannau hamdden, chwarae a chwaraeon  

Datblygu Twristiaeth a’r Strategaeth Ddiwylliannol  

Dwyrain Magwyr a 

Gwndy 

 



 

 

Cyfleusterau cyhoeddus 

Gwasanaethau Etholiadol ac adolygu’r cyfansoddiad 

Cyfathrebu, cysylltiadau cyhoeddus a marchnata  

Moeseg a safonau  

Y Gymraeg 



 

 

Nodau a Gwerthoedd Cyngor Sir Fynwy 
 

 Ein Pwrpas 

 

 i ddod yn sir ddi-garbon, gan gefnogi lles, iechyd ac urddas i bawb ar bob 

cam o'u bywydau. 

 

Amcanion rydym yn gweithio tuag atynt  

 
 Lle teg i fyw lle mae effeithiau anghydraddoldeb a thlodi wedi'u lleihau;  

 Lle gwyrdd i fyw a gweithio gyda llai o allyriadau carbon a gwneud 

cyfraniad cadarnhaol at fynd i'r afael â'r argyfwng yn yr hinsawdd a natur;  

 Lle ffyniannus ac uchelgeisiol, lle mae canol trefi bywiog a lle gall 

busnesau dyfu a datblygu;  

 Lle diogel i fyw lle mae gan bobl gartref maen nhw'n teimlo'n ddiogel 

ynddo;  

 Lle cysylltiedig lle mae pobl yn teimlo'n rhan o gymuned ac yn cael eu 

gwerthfawrogi;   

 Lle dysgu lle mae pawb yn cael cyfle i gyrraedd eu potensial.          

 
 

Ein Gwerthoedd 
  
Bod yn agored. Rydym yn agored ac yn onest. Mae pobl yn cael cyfle i gymryd rhan mewn 

penderfyniadau sy'n effeithio arnynt, dweud beth sy'n bwysig iddynt a gwneud pethau 

drostynt eu hunain/eu cymunedau. Os na allwn wneud rhywbeth i helpu, byddwn yn dweud 

hynny; os bydd yn cymryd peth amser i gael yr ateb, byddwn yn esbonio pam; os na allwn 

ateb yn syth, byddwn yn ceisio eich cysylltu gyda'r bobl a all helpu - mae adeiladu 

ymddiriedaeth ac ymgysylltu yn sylfaen allweddol. 

Tegwch. Darparwn gyfleoedd teg, i helpu pobl a chymunedau i ffynnu. Os nad yw rhywbeth 

yn ymddangos yn deg, byddwn yn gwrando ac yn esbonio pam. Byddwn bob amser yn 

ceisio trin pawb yn deg ac yn gyson. Ni allwn wneud pawb yn hapus bob amser, ond byddwn 

yn ymrwymo i wrando ac esbonio pam y gwnaethom weithredu fel y gwnaethom.  

Hyblygrwydd. Byddwn yn parhau i newid a bod yn hyblyg i alluogi cyflwyno'r gwasanaethau 

mwyaf effeithlon ac effeithiol. Mae hyn yn golygu ymrwymiad gwirioneddol i weithio gyda 

phawb i groesawu ffyrdd newydd o weithio. 

Gwaith Tîm. Byddwn yn gweithio gyda chi a'n partneriaid i gefnogi ac ysbrydoli pawb i 

gymryd rhan fel y gallwn gyflawni pethau gwych gyda'n gilydd. Nid ydym yn gweld ein 

hunain fel 'trefnwyr' neu ddatryswyr problemau, ond gwnawn y gorau o syniadau, asedau ac 

adnoddau sydd ar gael i wneud yn siŵr ein bod yn gwneud y pethau sy'n cael yr effaith 

mwyaf cadarnhaol ar ein pobl a lleoedd. 



 

 

Caredigrwydd – Byddwn yn dangos caredigrwydd i bawb yr ydym yn gweithio gyda nhw, 

gan roi pwysigrwydd perthnasoedd a’r cysylltiadau sydd gennym â’n gilydd wrth wraidd pob 

rhyngweithio. 

 

 



 

 
 

SCHEDULE 12A LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
EXEMPTION FROM DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS 

 
 

MEETING AND DATE OF MEETING: 
 

17th April 2024 

TITLE OF REPORT:  
 

Collections of monies secured under a land 
charge registered in connection with an 
Urgent Works Notice.   
 

AUTHOR: 
 

Amy Longford  

 
I have considered grounds for exemption of information contained in the report referred to above and 
make the following recommendation to the Proper Officer:- 
 
 
EXEMPTIONS APPLYING TO THE REPORT: 
The report relates to the personal property and circumstances of an induvial residing in the County. It 
specifically refers to their personal finances and property. With this in mind it is considered that the report 
should be exempt under Part 4 Sch 12A of the LGA 1972 (paras 12, 13 and 14) as it refers to the personal 
finances of an individual. 
  
FACTORS IN FAVOUR OF DISCLOSURE: 
 Full transparency in decision making  
 
PREJUDICE WHICH WOULD RESULT IF THE INFORMATION WERE DISCLOSED: 
 The disclosure of personal financial and individual circumstances could result in a data breach and 
non compliance with GPDR Regulations.  
 
MY VIEW ON THE PUBLIC INTEREST TEST IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 That the risk of non disclosure is limited and that the risk of disclosure is considerable.  
 
RECOMMENDED DECISION ON EXEMPTION FROM DISCLOSURE: 
 
To consider the full report including all appendices as exempt.  
 
Date: 13.05.2024 
 

Signed:       
 
Post: Development Management Area Manager  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



I accept the recommendation made above 
 
 

Proper Officer:      ____  
 
 
                                14th May 2024 
Date:                       _________________________ 

 

 

 

Page 2



Document is Restricted

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. PURPOSE 

 

1.1 The purpose of this paper is to present the case for providing Monmouthshire 

County Council foster carers with a subsidy on their council tax.  

 

1.2 Whilst this report deals specifically with the provision of a council tax subsidy for 

Monmouthshire County Council foster carers, it also sets out the need to 

undertake a review of the wider offer to foster carers in order to support the on-

going work to recruit and retain Monmouthshire carers.  

 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 To award foster carers with a 30% council tax subsidy to support the recruitment 

and retention of Monmouthshire County Council foster carers who care for 

Monmouthshire children. 

2.2 To review the wider offer to foster carers to ensure it meets the needs of foster 

carers and offers a package that is competitive within the region.  

 

3. KEY ISSUES 

The Case for A Council Tax Subsidy for Monmouthshire Carers 

3.1 As part of Monmouthshire County Council (MCC) Children Services Fostering 

Strategy 2023 – 2025, the fostering service has been working to improve MCC’s 

SUBJECT: Improving the Offer to Monmouthshire Foster Carers 
DIRECTORATE: Social Care & Health 

MEETING:  Individual Cabinet Member Decision 

DATE:   22nd May 2024 

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All 

Page 59

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

offer to foster carers in order to recruit and retain foster carers and reduce MCC’s 

reliance on Independent Fostering Agencies (IFAs). This is in the light of both the 

financial burden of the cost of these placements on the local authority and the 

imperative created by the Welsh Government policy to eliminate profit from the 

care of Children Looked After (CLA), referred to here as the Eliminate agenda. 

 

3.2 The support offer to foster carers provides both practical support (e.g. supervising 

social workers, out of hours support and a psychology and therapy service) and a 

level of financial renumeration through fees and allowances to ensure fostering is 

financially viable. Having a considered, sustainable, and attractive package of 

support will, it is hoped, encourage more people to consider fostering, promote 

foster carer retention, encourage the conversion of IFA carers to Monmouthshire 

carers (where we have children placed), and to make Monmouthshire a local 

authority of choice for foster carers. This is critical if we are to get close to 

achieving placement sufficiency, eliminate our reliance on IFAs before 2027 

(when the regulations  are expected to change) and reduce the need for high-cost 

placements. 

 

3.3 Prior to undertaking a wider review, it is proposed that a subsidy on council tax for 

foster carers would be an immediate and affordable next step to increase the 

overall offer.  

 

3.4 Council tax subsidies are currently offered in Merthyr Tydfil CBC, Wrexham CBC, 

Ynys Mon CC and Flintshire CC.  Local authorities in Merthyr Tydfil, Ynys Mon 

and Flintshire offer a council tax subsidy of 50%. Wrexham CBC offers a council 

tax subsidy of 75%.  

 

3.5 Given the current financial climate, although there is a strong financial case to be 

made for the importance of recruiting and retaining additional foster carers, this 

has to be balanced against the loss to MCC of the council tax revenue and 

therefore, two options have been proposed, a 50% subsidy in line with Merthyr 

Tydfil, Ynys Mon and Flintshire, and a more modest, yet still attractive subsidy of 

30%.  

 

Page 60



3 
 

3.6 A flat fee of £1,000 subsidy to council tax bills was considered. This would have 

equated to a £61,000 cost. However, this was discounted partly due to the 

difficulties of applying a fixed amount subsidy for the team who would be required 

to do this, it would also have introduced the issue of an annual inflationary uplift 

causing additional work and would have given some foster carers a significantly 

higher subsidy (in a few cases in excess of 100%) than others. This was therefore 

discounted as being inequitable and impractical. 

 

3.7 Any council tax subsidy awarded will be based on the net council tax after any 

reliefs and exemptions have been applied (e.g. Council Tax Reduction Scheme – 

CTRS).  This will reduce the forecast spend however, without looking at each 

account separately, it has not been possible to forecast by exactly how much.  

 

3.8 In order to calculate the costs of the proposed subsidy, we have looked at the 

Council Tax costings for all MCC foster carers. For the 19 foster carers living 

outside MCC, whilst these figures have not been validated by finance, the figures 

were arrived at by using the government website Check your Council Tax band - 

GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) website https://www.gov.uk/council-tax-bands to get 

accurate bandings for each address. Local authority websites were then checked 

to get accurate costings for each property. Not all councils have given the rates 

for 2024/25 and so we have uplifted each amount by 5% to give an approximate 

figure for 2024/25.  

 

3.9  If a percentage subsidy was used comparable with the other Welsh authorities, a 

50% reduction would incur a reduction of Council Tax revenue of £56,584 for 

existing carers that reside in Monmouthshire and cost of £19,120 for carers out of 

county, totalling £75,704. A more modest subsidy of 30% Council Tax would incur 

a reduction of Council Tax revenue of £33,950 for existing carers that reside in 

Monmouthshire and cost of £11,473 for carers out of county, totalling £45,423. 

Discussions around applying a Council Tax subsidy for foster carers have been 

on-going as part of the development of the Fostering Strategy and a Budget 

Pressure has been built in for Council Tax for 2024/25 for £50,000 which would 

cover the 30% subsidy. 

 

Page 61

https://www.gov.uk/council-tax-bands


4 
 

3.10  If accepted, it is proposed that the scheme be open to all local authority foster 

carers fostering Monmouthshire children. Discussions with the Council Tax 

department have taken place as to how the scheme would work. The Fostering 

Team will be responsible for notifying the Revenues Shared Service of any new 

foster carers and any cancellations throughout the year (including start and end 

dates).  On a 6 monthly basis the Revenues Shared Service will provide a list of 

exemptions applied to the Foster Care Team.  It will be the responsibility of the 

Foster Care Team to review this list and notify the Shared Service of any 

amendments. The Council Tax department would apply the subsidy on a pro rata 

basis and also end the subsidy for any foster carers no longer fostering for the 

local authority. Carers living outside the area would receive the 30% subsidy 

administered as 10 monthly payments following receipt of their council tax 

demand. This would be managed by the Fostering Team and paid as part of the 

fostering fees and allowances. 

 

3.11 In addition to subsiding Council Tax for our current in-house carers to improve 

retention, it is hoped that the benefit of the Council Tax subsidy will encourage 

IFAs to consider converting to become MCC foster carers. A subsidy to Council 

Tax is a benefit only the local authority can offer. The current amount that IFAs 

pay to MCC in Council Tax is £74,842. In the extremely unlikely event that 100% 

of IFAs converted to LA foster carers, this would incur approximately an additional 

£30,000 commitment for MCC as a contribution to carers’ council tax payments, 

however the cost saving to the local authority would be significantly in excess of 

this. If 10% or 25% of IFAs convert this would represent a £3,884 or £9,710 cost 

respectively. 

 

The Need for a Wider Review 

 

3.12 Council Tax exemption or discounts, or other similar benefits have a tangible, 

monetary value to fostering households; however, a wider review of the current 

fees and allowances structure for our carers is now required, the reasons for which 

are set out below. The review will need to consider the financial offer to carers in 

the context of the wider practical and professional offer that is already in place. 

Whilst any uplift to the financial offer for carers will place an additional cost pressure 

Page 62



5 
 

on the service, this must be weighed against the potential savings that could be 

made if more Monmouthshire carers were recruited, together with the benefits this 

would bring in terms of achieving good outcomes for children.  The outcomes of 

the review will form the basis of an options appraisal and cabinet report in 

September / October 2024 to align with the Council’s budget setting process.  

 

3.13  Today, the reality of foster caring is very different to how it might have been 

perceived in the past.  Whilst it is true that foster carers do need (usually) a spare 

room and definitely a big heart, they also need the skills, patience, time and 

resources to invest in building relationships and caring for traumatised children 

whose behaviour can communicate their pain and distress in sometimes extremely 

challenging ways. Carers need to have the time and resources to organise their 

days and weeks around attending meetings, taking children to family time between 

the child and people who are important to them, attending training, writing daily 

recordings and responding to the numerous requests for information and support 

from social workers. If we are to effectively support our foster carers, we have to 

recognise and compensate carers for the time they will need to invest in caring for 

our children. That includes recognising that for many of our children, they will need 

carers who have a great deal of flexibility and availability of time and attention.  

 

3.14 In common with other local authorities across the UK, MCC faces significant 

difficulties in the recruitment and retention of foster carers, which contributes to the 

overall insufficiency of placements for children. [Data from England shows that not 

only has the number of enquiries from potential foster carers fallen by 11% over 

the past two years but also more mainstream foster carers (excluding family and 

friends foster carers) stopped fostering than were approved, leading to a net 

decrease in fostering capacity]. As at 09/04/24, of the 120 children who are fostered 

in Monmouthshire 45 (37.5%) are currently placed with IFA foster carers. Of the 

remainder, 40 (33.3%) are with in-house generic foster carers and 35 (29.2%) are 

with kinship foster carers. Looking only at children placed outside of their family 

network, 53% are placed with IFA foster carers and 47% with MCC generic foster 

carers. It is hoped that reviewing our overall offer to in-house carers will assist with 

developing the means through which this differential could be reversed.  

Page 63



6 
 

 

3.15 MCC’s dependence on IFAs places it in a difficult position in regard to the Eliminate 

agenda because from 2027 local authorities will be unable to place children with 

for-profit IFAs. Our dependence on IFAs also comes at significant price as IFA 

placements cost anywhere between £751.06 to £1,615.67 (compared with a local 

authority placement which varies between £231 to £331). In spite of, or may be 

even because of, the Eliminate agenda, there has been a noticeable increase in 

IFA activity in Wales. In addition, evidence suggests this is also causing some 

providers to prioritise offering placements to children from England. Both of these 

factors are placing additional pressure on MCC in terms of the importance of 

recruiting and retaining foster carers. 

 

3.16 The lack of availability of foster placement accounts, in part, for the relatively high 

number of children in residential placements currently. Residential care providers 

are likewise avoiding investing in Wales in preference to England. There is a risk 

that in the event of no alternative placement being available, children may have to 

be placed further away from home and community which is both less than ideal for 

the child and comes at a significant financial cost to the authority. In addition, it 

means that placement matching is often lacking in sophistication which increases 

the likelihood of placement breakdown with a further adverse impact on children. 

 

3.17 Retention of existing foster carers is essential to achieve placement sufficiency and 

promote placement stability. Each year foster carers will be lost to MCC due to 

retirement, sickness, change of circumstances/career, transfer to IFAs and other 

life events. Five fostering households were lost to MCC over the past 3 year period 

due to a combination of retirement, move to IFAs, deregistration and changes in 

circumstances. 

 

3.18 The demographic profile of our foster carers is towards an older age group with 

66% being in over 50. The age range spans from 33 – 76 whilst carers in their 50s 

represent the single biggest age group (18, 46%) with 7 (18%) being in their 40s 

and only 2 being in their 30s. We are anticipating a further three fostering 

households retiring over the next 12-18 months.  

 

Page 64



7 
 

3.19 Since 2019 considerable resource has been turned to recruitment activity and the 

implementation of a foster carer strategy. Despite our efforts we are not currently 

generating the number of enquiries needed and neither do we consistently meet 

our target conversion rate from initial inquiry to placement [Foster Wales has a 

target conversion rate of 12% conversion, the Gwent region is running at 

approximately 8%]. 

 2019 
/20 

2020 
/21 

2021 
/22 

Target 
22-23 

Actual 
22-23 

Target 
23-24 

Actual 
23-24 

Target 
24-25 

Enquiries 56 60 52 75 53 84 76 92 

Initial visits 24 16 15 25 20 28 11 31 

Assessments 12 10 5  7  8  

Approvals 4 7 5 9 1 10 7 11 

 

3.20 Based on our commissioning data, ideally, by 2027 MCC needs to recruit an 

additional 30 fostering households to meet current demand as well as compensate 

for those leaving fostering. If we are to come anywhere close to achieving this we 

need to be able to make fostering for MCC an attractive option.  

 

3.21 MCC is in direct competition, not only with IFAs able to pay significantly higher 

placement fees, but also with neighbouring local authorities who also pay higher 

fees. IFA placements cost anywhere between £751.06 to £1,615.67 per week 

compared with a current local authority placement cost which varies between £231 

to £331. Given MCC’s reliance on IFA placements there is a strong financial case 

to develop and improve the foster carer offer to increase the number of local 

authority foster carers, retain the carers we currently have and attract IFA foster 

carers to foster for MCC. All of these issues will be fully considered within the review 

of the foster care offer.  

 

3.22 Foster carers are generally positive about the holistic support they receive from 

MCC. They speak favourably about the support they get from supervising social 

workers and the psychology and therapy service (BASE). However they, like 

everyone else, are struggling with the cost of living and would like to see uplifts to 

fees and allowances in line with inflation. Although we were able to achieve this in 

2024 / 2025, it is acknowledged that this is insufficient to bring the financial offer up 

to a competitive rate. [The increase in fostering allowances from 2023/24-2024/25 

Page 65



8 
 

was 6%, based on inflation at the time, and 4.5% for the fee element which matched 

the pay award for staff in 2024/25 budget build.] We are aware the one major 

reason that foster carers chose to foster for IFAs is the fees and allowances they 

are paid and that there are foster carers living in Monmouthshire who foster for 

other local authorities. It is plausible that uncompetitive foster carer fees in MCC 

are a contributing factor to this.  

 

4. EQUALITY AND FUTURE GENERATIONS EVALUATION 

4.1  Children who are looked after are a particularly vulnerable population as they  have 

all experienced, to varying degrees, significant loss and trauma. MCC has a 

corporate parenting responsibility to these children to safeguard and promote their 

wellbeing as they would their own children. Having sufficient, high quality, foster 

placements is key this. A full impact assessment is included at appendix A. 

 

  

Page 66



9 
 

5. OPTIONS APPRAISAL 

The options are set out in the table below: 

 Description Costs Benefits Disbenefits/risks Recommended 

Option 
1 

Do nothing Cost neutral Cost neutral Failure to recruit new foster 
carers or retain existing foster 
carers leading to increased 
costs as children are required to 
be placed with IFA carers or in 
residential homes. This will 
become increasingly risky as 
from 2027 local authorities will 
be unable to place children with 
for profit IFAs. 

No 

Option 
2 

Agree a 
£1000 fixed 
amount 
subsidy to 
council tax 
 

An estimated 
reduction of council 
tax revenue of 
£42,000 for carers in 
Monmouthshire and 
cost of £19,000 for 
carers out of county, 
totalling £61,000. 

This would offer a tangible 
financial benefit to foster carers.  

A £1,000 subsidy is a significant 
benefit, especially for less 
affluent fostering households for 
whom the  amount represents a 
greater %.  

A subsidy for council tax is not a 
benefit IFAs can offer and so 
represents a good marketing 
opportunity for MCC.  

Cost in loss of revenue, 
however will be mitigated if we 
are able to recruit additional 
foster carers and bring children 
out of high cost placements or 
prevent children from being 
placed in high cost placements. 

A fixed subsidy is more difficult 
to administer than a percentage 
discount and needs to be 
annually reviewed. 

A fixed subsidy offers a 
disproportionate subsidy to 
some foster carers over others 
and is therefore less equitable 
than a % subsidy which applies 
equally to all foster carers. 

NO P
age 67



10 
 

This is a higher amount than 
has been built into the budget 
pressure for 2024/25 

Option 
3 

Agree a 
50% 
subsidy in 
council tax 
for foster 
carers 

An estimated 
reduction of council 
tax revenue of 
£75,704 

This would offer a tangible 
financial benefit to foster carers.  
 
A 50% subsidy in council tax is a 
significant benefit to fostering 
households, and highly attractive 
in terms of promoting fostering, 
especially in a cost of living 
crisis. A 50% subsidy would 
match Merthyr Tydfil, Ynys Mon 
and Flintshire CBC’s council tax 
subsidy.  
 
If this leads to recruitment and 
retention of additional foster 
carers, the additional cost will be 
mitigated as we will be able to 
bring children out of high cost 
placements or prevent children 
from being placed in high cost 
placements.  
 
A council tax subsidy is not a 
benefit IFAs can offer and so 
represents a good marketing 
opportunity for MCC. 

Loss of Council Tax revenue. 
Although this matches Merthyr 
Tydfil, Ynys Mon and Flintshire 
CBC’s council tax subsidy, the 
cost of property in MCC, and 
therefore council tax bandings 
are higher and therefore the 
cost in terms of loss of revenue 
will be higher.  
 
This is a higher amount than 
has been built into the budget 
pressure for 2024/25 

NO 

Option 
4 

Agree a 
30% 
reduction in 
council tax 
for foster 
carers 

An estimated 
reduction of council 
tax revenue of 
£45,423 

This would offer a tangible 
financial benefit to foster carers.  

A 30% subsidy in council tax is a 
significant benefit to fostering 

Cost in loss of revenue. YES 

P
age 68



11 
 

households, especially in a cost 
of living crisis. 

If this leads to recruitment and 
retention of additional foster 
carers, the additional cost will be 
mitigated as we will be able to 
bring children out of high cost 
placements or prevent children 
from being placed in high cost 
placements.  

A 30% subsidy is more 
affordable to MCC than a 50% 
reduction and is within the 
budget envelope built into the 
budget pressure for 2024/25. 

A council tax subsidy is not a 
benefit IFAs can offer and so 
represents a good marketing 
opportunity for MCC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 69



12 
 

 

 

6. EVALUTAION CRITERIA 

 

6.1 Recruitment of carers is monitored within the current Fostering Strategy including 

numbers of inquiries generated through to final approval rates. Data is tracked and 

monitored against recruitment activity to identify what is most effective in terms of 

raising the profile of fostering and recruiting foster carers for Monmouthshire. In terms 

of retention, we monitor levels of satisfaction of foster carers through annual 

appraisals and wider engagement opportunities and ensure that the reasons why any 

foster carers stop fostering are fully understood. Alongside of data specifically relating 

to foster carers, the overall distribution of children’s placements is monitored so that 

we can monitor the % of children placed with Monmouthshire carers. 

 

6.2 For 2024 / 2025 the targets are: 92 initial inquiries; 31 follow up visits and 11 

approvals. There are currently 4 foster care assessments in progress. 

 

7. REASONS 

 

7.1 The rationale for the proposal for introduction of a council tax subsidy is set out 

above. Principally it is designed to help make fostering for the local authority more 

attractive and financially viable in an environment where IFAs are aggressively 

recruiting, and the Local Authority cannot compete in terms of fees and allowances. 

 

7.2 MCC has insufficient in-house foster placements for the children in its care causing a 

dependency on IFA placements. This is both costly and also makes us vulnerable in 

the light of the Eliminate agenda. The MCC offer to foster carers is not competitive, 

even across Gwent authorities. Given that foster carers can receive significantly more 

money for fostering with IFAs, MCC must find ways of making fostering for the Local 

Authority as attractive as possible if it is to recruit sufficient foster carers and retain 

the carers we have. A wider review is needed to better understand what the 

components of should look like and take account of both the financial and support 

elements. 

Page 70



13 
 

 

7.3 It is accepted that the current financial situation for all local authorities is an extremely 

difficult one. These proposals are advanced on the basis that recruiting and retaining 

sufficient foster carers makes good economic sense as it reduces MCC’s reliance on 

high-cost IFA and residential placements, and achieves better outcomes for children.   

 

8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 A 50% subsidy would incur a reduction of council tax revenue of £56,584 for existing 

carers that reside in Monmouthshire and cost of £19,120 for carers out of county, 

totalling £75,704.  

8.2 A 30% Council Tax subsidy would incur a reduction of council tax revenue of £33,950 

for existing carers that reside in Monmouthshire and cost of £11,473 for carers out of 

county, totalling £45,423.  

8.3 Discussions around applying a Council Tax subsidy for foster carers have been on-

going as part of the development of the Fostering Strategy and a budget pressure has 

been built in for Council Tax for 2024/25 for £50,000. This means that a 30% subsidy 

would be affordable within the current budget envelope. However although first year 

costs will be within the £50,000 budget pressure the service has been awarded it will 

need to be taken into account that costs will increase as annual council tax rises.   

8.4 If the ambition to make MCC a first choice for future carers then the costs of 

improving the financial offer to foster carers will be significantly offset against are 

reduction in high cost placements. The impact initiatives such as this have on foster 

carers, foster carer recruitment and retention will need to be monitored and will feed 

into the future development of the service.  

 

9. Consultees 

Social Care and Health DMT 

Corporate Parenting Panel 

10. Background Papers  

None 

Page 71



14 
 

11. AUTHOR:   Charlotte Drury 

 CONTACT DETAILS  

E-mail:   charlottedrury@monmouthshire.gov.uk 

 

Page 72



15 
 

 
 
 

     
 
 

Name of the Officer Charlotte Drury 

Phone no: 07811 234244 

E-mail: chalottedrury@monmouthsire.gov.uk 

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal 

To provide foster carers who foster for Monmouthshire County Council 

and care for Monmouthshire children with a council tax subsidy. 

Name of Service area All directorates Date  23/04/2024 

 

1. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics?  Please explain the 

impact, the evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.  

Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your proposal has 
on the protected characteristic 

Describe any 
negative impacts 

your proposal has on 
the protected 
characteristic 

What has been/will be done 
to mitigate any negative 

impacts or better contribute 
to positive impacts? 

Age Children who are looked after are a particularly vulnerable 

population as they have all experienced, to varying degrees, 

significant loss and trauma. MCC has a corporate parenting 

responsibility to these children to safeguard and promote 

their wellbeing as they would their own children. Having 

sufficient, high quality, foster placements is key this. 

None A council tax subsidy will be used 
to promote fostering for MCC to 
increase foster carer recruitment 
and retention. 

Disability None identified  .None identified .None identified 

Gender 

reassignment 

.None identified .None identified .None identified 

Marriage or civil 

partnership 

None identified None identified .None identified 

Integrated Impact Assessment document 
(incorporating Equalities, Future Generations, Welsh Language and 

Socio Economic Duty) 
 

P
age 73



16 
 

Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your proposal has 
on the protected characteristic 

Describe any 
negative impacts 

your proposal has on 
the protected 
characteristic 

What has been/will be done 
to mitigate any negative 

impacts or better contribute 
to positive impacts? 

Pregnancy or 

maternity 

None identified .None identified None identified 

Race .None identified None identified .None identified 

Religion or Belief None identified None identified None identified 

Sex None identified .None identified None identified 

Sexual Orientation None identified .None identified .None identified 

 

2. The Socio-economic Duty and Social Justice 

The Socio-economic Duty requires public bodies to  have due regard to the need to reduce inequalities of outcome which result from 

socio-economic disadvantage when taking key decisions This duty aligns with our commitment as an authority to Social Justice. 

 Describe any positive impacts your 

proposal has in respect of people 

suffering socio economic 

disadvantage 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has in respect of 
people suffering socio economic 
disadvantage. 

What has been/will be done 
to mitigate any negative 
impacts or better contribute 
to positive impacts? 

Socio-economic 

Duty and Social 

Justice  

Outcomes for many care experienced 

people are often poorer than for the 

general population. It is critical therefore, 

that we seek to provide children with the 

best support possible and this means 

also providing those who care for them 

with appropriate support, including 

financial support. 

.None identified None identified 

P
age 74



17 
 

 

3. Policy making and the Welsh language. 

 
 
4. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below?  Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, 
together with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.  There’s no need to put something in 
every box if it is not relevant!

How does your proposal impact 
on the following aspects of the 
Council’s Welsh Language 
Standards: 

 Describe the positive impacts of 

this proposal 

Describe the negative impacts 
of this proposal 

What has been/will 
be done to mitigate 
any negative impacts 
or better contribute 
to positive impacts 

Policy Making  

Effects on the use of the Welsh 

language,  

Promoting Welsh language  

Treating the Welsh language no 

less favourably 

.None identified .None identified .None identified 

Operational  

Recruitment & Training of 

workforce 

 

We will continue to seek to recruit carers who 

have Welsh language skills so that children can 

be placed placements which best meet their 

identity needs.  

None identified Recruitment campaigns 
run in both Welsh and 
English 

Service delivery  

Use of Welsh language in service 

delivery  

Promoting use of the language 

.None identified None identified None identified 

P
age 75



18 
 

 Well Being Goal  

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 

Describe the positive and negative 

impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A prosperous Wales 
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates wealth, 
provides jobs 

Providing subsidised council tax will make 

fostering a more financially viable option, 

promoting the recruitment and retention of foster 

carers and promoting better long term outcomes 

for children who might otherwise have to be cared 

for in residential children’s homes. 

.None identified 

A resilient Wales 
Maintain and enhance biodiversity 
and land, river and coastal 
ecosystems that support resilience 
and can adapt to change (e.g. 
climate change) 

Placing children closer to home can help 

reduce carbon emissions through less 

travelling.  

None identified 

A healthier Wales 
People’s physical and mental 
wellbeing is maximized and health 
impacts are understood 

Providing subsidised council tax will make 

fostering a more financially viable option, 

promoting the recruitment and retention of foster 

carers and promoting better long term outcomes 

for children who might otherwise have to be cared 

for in residential children’s homes.. 

.None identified 

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Communities are attractive, viable, 
safe and well connected 

Providing subsidised council tax will make 

fostering a more financially viable option, 

promoting the recruitment and retention of foster 

carers and promoting better long term outcomes 

for children who might otherwise have to be cared 

for in residential children’s homes. 

.None identified 

A globally responsible Wales 
Taking account of impact on global 
well-being when considering local 
social, economic and environmental 
wellbeing 

None identified None identified 

P
age 76



19 
 

 Well Being Goal  

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 

Describe the positive and negative 

impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 

mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A Wales of vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh language 
Culture, heritage and Welsh 
language are promoted and 
protected.  People are encouraged 
to do sport, art and recreation 

Providing subsidised council tax will make 

fostering a more financially viable option, 

promoting the recruitment and retention of foster 

carers and therefore reducing the number of 

children who might otherwise need to be placed 

out of Wales in residential children’s homes or IFA 

placements.  

.None identified 

A more equal Wales 
People can fulfil their potential no 
matter what their background or 
circumstances 

Providing subsidised council tax will make 

fostering a more financially viable option, 

promoting the recruitment and retention of foster 

carers and promoting better long term outcomes 

for children who might otherwise have to be cared 

for in residential children’s homes. 

.None identified 

 

5. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development? 

Sustainable 

Development Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 

this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not 

explain why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Balancing 

short term 

need with 

long term 

and 

planning for 

the future 

Whilst providing a council tax subsidy will have a 

financial impact on MCC in the short term, if this leads to 

improved recruitment and retention of foster carers this 

will reduce MCC’s reliance on high cost IFA placements 

and reduce the number of children being placed in 

residential children’s homes when they would be more 

appropriately cared for in foster care and at a much 

greater cost. In the long term, this not only makes 

financial sense but also promotes better long term 

outcomes for care experienced people. 

.None identified 

P
age 77



20 
 

Sustainable 

Development Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 

this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not 

explain why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Working 

together 

with other 

partners to 

deliver 

objectives  

Adopting this as a council policy promotes a collegiate 

approach across the council and opportunities to raise 

the profile of this issue with partners. 

.None identified 

Involving 

those with 

an interest 

and 

seeking 

their views 

Financial support is given by foster carers as one of their 

top priorities in a recent survey by Fostering Network.  

.None identified 

Putting 

resources 

into 

preventing 

problems 

occurring 

or getting 

worse 

MCC’s foster carer population is aging and unless we 

are able to recruit new foster carers, MCC is going to 

continue to be reliant, or worse still, increase it’s 

dependence on high cost IFA and residential 

placements. Investing in foster carers will be critical if we 

are to get close to achieving placement sufficiency, an 

outcome that is both better for children and more 

financially sustainable for the local authority. 

.None identified 

P
age 78



21 
 

Sustainable 

Development Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 

this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not 

explain why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Considering impact on all 

wellbeing goals together 

and on other bodies 

Adopting this as a council policy promotes a collegiate 

approach across the council and opportunities to raise 

the profile of this issue with partners. 

.None identified 

 
  

P
age 79



22 
 

6. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on the following important responsibilities: 
Corporate Parenting and Safeguarding.  Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?   
 

 Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has  

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has  

What will you do/ have you 
done to mitigate any 
negative impacts or better 
contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Safeguarding  MCC has a duty to protect and 

safeguard children who have been 

impacted by harm or abuse. This 

proposal is in line with MCCs 

safeguarding responsibilities. 

.None identified .None identified 

Corporate Parenting  This policy speaks directly to the 

councils corporate parenting 

responsibility.  

.None identified  
.None identified 

 
7. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal? 
 

 
Placement Commissioning Strategy – data on placement and CLA numbers 
Fostering Strategy 2023-26 – data on recruitment and retention of foster carers 
Foster Wales – data on placement sufficiency 
 

 
 

8. SUMMARY:  As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how 
have they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future? 

 
.This section should summarise the key issues arising from the evaluation.  This summary must be included in the Committee report template 

Investing in foster carers is key to working towards placement sufficiency and placement sufficiency is critical if we are to meet the 2027 

deadline for Eliminate and also if we are to reduce MCC’s reliance on high-cost IFA and residential placements which are neither in the 

best interests of children not the local authority. Whilst subsidising the cost of council tax for foster carers does come at a financial cost 

P
age 80



23 
 

to the local authority, it has the potential to support existing foster carers to remain fostering as well as encourage people who are 

considering fostering to foster for MCC rather than an IFA or different local authority. In the cost of living crisis, it may also encourage 

people who have not thought about fostering to consider becoming foster carers.  

 

9. ACTIONS: As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them 
below, if applicable. 

 

What are you going to do  When are you going to do it?  Who is responsible  

Monitor the implementation of the policy. Annually as part of the review 

of MCC Fostering Strategy 
C Drury 

   

   

 

10. VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as 

informally within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision making process.  It is important to 

keep a record of this process to demonstrate how you have considered and built in equality and future generations 

considerations  wherever possible. 

Version 

No. 

Decision making stage  Date considered Brief description of any amendments made 

following consideration 

 e.g. budget mandate, DMT, SLT, Scrutiny, 

Cabinetetc 
  

    

    

 

 

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 CASGLU ARIAN A DDIOGELWYD O DAN BRIDIANT TIR AR FFERM UPPER HOUSE, TREFYNWY MEWN CYSYLLTIAD Â HYSBYSIAD GWAITH BRYS A GYFLWYNWYD YN ALLT Y BELLA
	1. ICM 17th April UWN land charge and FGE
	1a. FJ STATEMENT OF CASE Final (1)

	2 GWELLA'R CYNNIG I OFALWYR MAETH SIR FYNWY

